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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OHIO

EASTERN DIVISION
DANIEL KARON, individually and on Case No. : 1:18-cv-00999
behalf of all others similarly situated,
Plaintiff, CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
V.
DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

APEX HEALTHCARE ADVISORS, INC,
a Florida corporation,

Defendant.

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT AND DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Plaintiff Daniel Karon (“Karon” or “Plaintiff”’) brings this Class Action
Complaint and Demand for Jury Trial (“Complaint”) against Defendant Apex Healthcare
Advisors, Inc. (“Apex Healthcare” or “Defendant”) to: (1) stop its practice of placing
calls using “an artificial or prerecorded voice” to the telephones of consumers nationwide
without their prior express written consent; (2) stop Defendant from calling consumers
who are registered on the National Do Not Call Registry; and (3) obtain redress for all
persons injured by its conduct. Plaintiff Karon, for his Complaint, alleges as follows upon
personal knowledge as to himself and his own acts and experiences, and, as to all other
matters, upon information and belief, including investigation conducted by his attorneys.

PARTIES
1. Plaintiff Daniel Karon is a natural person and resident of Cuyahoga

County, Ohio.
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2. Defendant Apex Healthcare Advisors, Inc. is a corporation organized and
existing under the laws of the State of Florida. Apex Healthcare systemically and
continuously conducts business throughout this District, the State of Ohio, and the United
States. Apex Healthcare can be served through its owner and registered agent, Juan
Averoff, Jr, at 2500 Hollywood Blvd., Suite 314, Hollywood, Florida 33020.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

3. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action under 28
U.S.C. § 1331, as the action arises under the Telephone Consumer Protection Act, 47
U.S.C. § 227 et seq. (the “TCPA”), which is a federal statute.

4. This Court has personal jurisdiction over Apex Healthcare because Apex
Healthcare solicits significant consumer business in this District, has entered into
contracts in this District, and a significant portion of the unlawful conduct alleged in this
Complaint occurred in, and/or was directed to, this District. Specifically, Plaintiff
received the prerecorded call at issue on his landline telephone, in this District. Moreover,
Apex Healthcare’s owner, Juan Averoft, Jr, is actively registered with the Ohio
Department of Insurance and has been since at least April 4, 2013.}

5. Venue is proper in this District under 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b) because Apex
Healthcare conducts a significant amount of business within this District and because the
wrongful conduct giving rise to this case occurred in, and/or was directed to, this District.

Venue is additionally proper because Plaintiff resides in this District.

1

https://gateway.insurance.ohio.gov/UI/ODI.Agent.Public.Ul/AgentLocator.mvc/Displayl
ndividualDetail/748328
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COMMON ALLEGATIONS OF FACT

6. Apex Healthcare, both directly and through unincorporated alter-egos
purports to be a broker for consumer’s seeking health insurance. In reality, Apex
Healthcare is a lead generation business, obtaining and selling consumer leads to brokers
and agents.

7. For example, on a call with Plaintiff, Defendant’s agent referred to the
entity calling as “Health Registration Center.” Health Registration Center appears to be
the operator of six call centers in South Florida,? one of which shares the same address,
down to the suite number, as Apex Healthcare.®

8. In recent years, insurance firms such as Apex Healthcare have turned to
unsolicited telemarketing as a way to increase its customer base. Widespread
telemarketing is a primary method by which Apex Healthcare solicits new customers.

9. The TCPA prohibits companies, such as Apex Healthcare, from placing
calls using an artificial or prerecorded voice (“prerecorded calls””) when making calls to
residential telephones without first obtaining consent.

10.  Apex Healthcare has violated, and continues to violate, the TCPA and its
implementing regulations by placing prerecorded calls to residential telephone
subscribers (a) who have not expressly consented to receiving such calls and/or (b) who

have expressly requested not to receive such calls.

2 See http://www.salesjobsftlauderdale.com/ (“Our goal is to staff ALL of our 6 Offices
through-out Broward & Miami Dade Counties.” and “From our state of the art dialer, to
our in depth training, to our massive lead generation system...we provide the best
opportunity in South Florida for a motivated sales agent.”)

3 See https://10to8.com/book/healthregcenter/ (website recruiting sales personnel listing
same address as Apex Healthcare).
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11.  As Congress recognized:

Many customers are outraged over the proliferation of intrusive, nuisance

calls to their homes from telemarketers.... Banning such automated or

prerecorded telephone calls to the home, except when the receiving party

consents to receiving the call or when such calls are necessary in an

emergency situation affecting the health and safety of the consumer, is the

only effective means of protecting telephone consumers from this

nuisance and privacy invasion.*

12.  Senator Larry Pressler, one of the original drafters of the TCPA, explained
the need for the TCPA by observing that “[u]nlike other communications media, the
telephone commands our instan[t] attention. Junk mail can be thrown away. Television
commercials can be turned off. The telephone demands to be answered.” 137 Cong. Rec.
S18785 (daily ed. Nov. 27, 1991) (statement of Sen. Pressler).

13. As explained by the Federal Communications Commission (“FCC”)°, the
TCPA requires “prior express written consent for all autodialed or prerecorded
telemarketing calls to wireless numbers and residential lines.” In the Matter of Rules and
Regulations Implementing the Telephone Consumer Protection Act of 1991, CG No. 02-
278, FCC 12-21, 27 FCC Rcd. 1830 1 2 (Feb. 15, 2012).

14.  Yet, in violation of this rule, Apex Healthcare fails to obtain any prior
express written consent to place prerecorded calls to consumers’ residential telephone
numbers.

15. In response to the liability risk associated with the TCPA, numerous

commercially available services exist to help companies, such as Apex Healthcare, that

call others using prerecorded voices, identify cellular subscribers and otherwise ensure

4 Pub. L. No. 102-243 § 2(6, 12) (1991), codified at 47 U.S.C. § 227.
® The FCC is the federal agency given the administrative authority to interpret and
enforce the TCPA. 47 U.S.C. § 227(b)(2).
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that calls are only made to consenting consumers. For instance, companies such as
Infutor, Nextmark List, and Contact Center Compliance advertise their ability to instantly
identify and flag disconnected telephone numbers from cellular telephone number data
lists on a recurring basis (such as weekly or monthly). This type of service can identify
disconnected numbers before they are recycled, thereby alerting mobile marketers that
any consent associated with those telephone numbers has been terminated.

16. Despite the FCC’s ruling, the industry guidelines, and the commercial
availability of programs that help callers filter out non-consenting numbers, Apex
Healthcare fails to take the necessary steps to ensure that its prerecorded calls are placed
only to consenting recipients.

17. Rather, in an effort to increase revenue and skirt additional costs, Apex
Healthcare simply ignores the law when contacting individuals via prerecorded calls to
their residential telephones.

18.  Apex Healthcare knows or should know that its prerecorded calls are
placed to non-consenting residential telephone subscribers. Ultimately, Apex Healthcare
is responsible for verifying telephone number ownership and obtaining consent before
placing prerecorded calls to residential telephone subscribers.

19.  Apex Healthcare was, and is, aware that its unsolicited prerecorded calls
were, and are, unauthorized as it fails to obtain prior express written consent before
placing those calls to consumers. Ultimately, consumers are forced to bear the costs of
receiving these unsolicited prerecorded calls.

20.  Telemarketers can easily and inexpensively avoid calling consumers who

are registered on the National Do Not Call Registry by “scrubbing” their call lists against
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the National Do Not Call Registry database. The scrubbing process identifies those
numbers on the National Do Not Call Registry, allowing telemarketers to remove those
numbers and ensure that no calls are placed to consumers whom opt-out of telemarketing
calls.

21.  To avoid violating the TCPA by calling registered numbers, telemarketers
must scrub their call lists against the Registry at least once every thirty-one days. See 16
C.F.R. 8 310.4(b)(3)(iv).

22.  There are numerous third party services that will additionally scrub the
call lists for a telemarketer to segment out landline and cellular telephone numbers, since
the consent standards differ depending on what type of phone a telemarketer is calling.®
Indeed, one service notes that they can:

Instantly verify whether a specific phone number is wireless or wireline to

learn if TCPA regulations apply — and verify the identity of the current

subscriber to determine if they are the same party who provided you with

consent.’

23. By placing the unsolicited prerecorded calls at issue in this Complaint,
Apex Healthcare caused Plaintiff and the other members of the Class actual harm and
cognizable legal injury. This includes the aggravation, nuisance, and invasions of privacy
that result from the sending and receipt of such prerecorded calls, a loss of value realized
for the monies consumers paid to their carriers for the receipt of such prerecorded calls,

and a loss of the use and enjoyment of their phones, including wear and tear to the related

data, memory, software, hardware, and battery components, among other harms.

® See e.g. http://www.dncsolution.com/do-not-call.asp;
http://www.donotcallprotection.com/do-not-call-compliance-solutions-1;
http://www.mindwav.com/tcpa_compliance_solution.asp;

" https://www.neustar.biz/services/tcpa-compliance

6
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24, In response to Apex Healthcare’s unlawful conduct, Plaintiff filed this
action seeking (a) an injunction requiring Apex Healthcare to cease all unsolicited
prerecorded calling activities and, (b) an award of actual or statutory damages to the
members of the Class under the TCPA, together with costs and reasonable attorneys’
fees.

FACTS SPECIFIC TO PLAINTIFF DANIEL KARON

25.  Plaintiff Karon is the registered account owner and regular user of a
landline telephone number 216-xxx-4662.

26.  On November 30, 2017 at 4:30 pm, Plaintiff received an unsolicited, pre-
recorded phone call on his landline telephone from 216-868-6578. Plaintiftf’s caller ID
identified the inbound call only as “wireless caller.”

27.  The November 30, 2017 call used a pre-recorded voice and stated that the
caller was “Michael with health enrollment” and asked if Plaintiff was unhappy with his
current health insurance policy, deductible or premiums and asked Plaintiff to press 1.

28.  Plaintiff pressed “1” to speak with a live person and was connected with
one of Defendant’s telephone representatives, “Ralph.”

29. “Ralph” identified himself as affiliated with “Health Registration Center”
and provided (855) 265-4277 as a callback number.

30. “Ralph” then placed plaintiff on hold to “search for options” for healthcare

coverage for Plaintiff.
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31.  When “Ralph” returned to the line, he proceeded to quote a policy for
“Federal Insurance Company” which happens to be one of the two health insurance
companies that Apex Healthcare’s owner, Juan Averoff, Jr, is licensed to sell in Ohio.®

32.  Plaintiff ended the call without committing to any purchase of insurance.

33.  Within minutes of the initial call, Plaintiff received two additional calls on
his landline telephone from 954-866-2592. Plaintiff’s caller ID identified the inbound
calls as coming from Defendant, Apex Healthcare. Plaintiff did not answer the two
additional calls.

34.  The calls at issue were unquestionably placed by Defendant, as the caller-
ID displayed a name and/or number assigned to, and/or used by, Defendant.

35.  Plaintiff has never provided prior express written consent to Defendant to
receive prerecorded calls to him on the 216-xxx-4662 number.

36. Defendant failed to obtain prior express written consent that included, as
required by 47 C.F.R. § 64.1200(f)(8)(i) a “clear and conspicuous” disclosure informing
the person signing that:

(A) By executing the agreement, such person authorizes the seller to

deliver or cause to be delivered to the signatory telemarketing calls using

an automatic telephone dialing system or an artificial or prerecorded

voice; and

(B) The person is not required to sign the agreement (directly or

indirectly), or agree to enter into such an agreement as a condition of
purchasing any property, goods, or services.

8 See
https://gateway.insurance.ohio.gov/UI/ODI.Agent.Public.Ul/AgentLocator.mvc/Displayl
ndividualDetail/748328
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37. By placing the prerecorded calls as alleged herein, Defendant has caused
consumers actual harm in the form of annoyance, nuisance, and invasion of privacy. In
addition, the prerecorded calls disturbed Plaintiff’s use and enjoyment of his phone, in
addition to the wear and tear on the phone’s hardware (including the phone’s battery) and
the consumption of memory on Plaintiff’s phone.

38. In order to redress these injuries, Plaintiff, on behalf of himself and the
other members of the Class, brings suit under the Telephone Consumer Protection Act,
47 U.S.C. § 227, et seq., which prohibits unsolicited prerecorded calls to cellular
telephones.

39.  On behalf of the Class, Plaintiff seeks an injunction requiring Apex
Healthcare to cease all unsolicited pre-recorded calling activities and an award of actual
or statutory damages to the class members, together with costs and reasonable attorneys’
fees.

CLASS ALLEGATIONS

40.  Plaintiff brings this action pursuant to Federal Rules of Civil Procedure
23(b)(2) and 23(b)(3) on behalf of himself and all others similarly situated and seeks
certification of the following Class:

Robocall No Consent Class: All persons in the United States who from a

date four years prior to the filing of the initial complaint to the present: (1)

Defendant (or a third person acting on behalf of Defendant) called; (2) on

the person’s telephone number using an artificial or prerecorded voice;

and (3) for whom Defendant lacked prior express consent to call that
cellular telephone number at the time the call was made.

41.  The following people are excluded from the Class: (1) any Judge or
Magistrate presiding over this action and members of their families; (2) Defendant,

Defendant’s subsidiaries, parents, successors, predecessors, and any entity in which the
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Defendant or their parents have a controlling interest and its current or former employees,
officers and directors; (3) persons who properly execute and file a timely request for
exclusion from the Class; (4) persons whose claims in this matter have been finally
adjudicated on the merits or otherwise released; (5) Plaintiff’s counsel and Defendant’s
counsel; and (6) the legal representatives, successors, and assigns of any such excluded
persons. Plaintiff anticipates the need to amend the definition of the Class following class
discovery, including discovery revealing the manner by which Defendant claims they
obtained prior express consent to place autodialed and/or pre-recorded calls to the
Plaintiff.

42. Numerosity: The exact number of members within the Class is unknown
and not available to Plaintiff at this time, but it is clear that individual joinder is
impracticable. On information and belief, Defendant has placed unsolicited calls to
hundreds or thousands of consumers who fall into the definition of the Class. Members of
the Class can be identified through Defendant’s records.

43.  Typicality: Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the claims of other members of
the Class in that Plaintiff and the members of the Class sustained damages arising out of
Defendant’s uniform wrongful conduct, namely their unauthorized telemarketing calls.
Plaintiff is a member of the Class defined herein, and if Plaintiff is able to recover for the
claims set forth in this Complaint, then the other members of the Class will have a right
to recover as well.

44.  Adequate Representation: Plaintiff will fairly and adequately represent
and protect the interests of the Class and has retained counsel competent and experienced

in complex class actions, including class actions under the TCPA and related statutes.

10
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Plaintiff has no conflicts with, or interests antagonistic to, those of the Class, and

Defendant has no defenses unique to Plaintiff.

45.  Commonality and Predominance: There are many questions of law and

fact common to the claims of Plaintiff and the Class, and those questions predominate

over any questions that may affect individual members of the Class. Common questions

for the Class include, but are not necessarily limited to the following:

a)
b)

Whether Defendant’s conduct constitutes a violation of the TCPA,;

Whether Defendant utilized an artificial or prerecorded voice to place calls to
members of the Class;

Whether members of the Class are entitled to statutory and treble damages based
on the willfulness of Defendant’s conduct;

Whether Defendant obtained prior express consent to contact any class members;
Whether Defendant’s calls constitute telemarketing or were dual purpose
messages; and

To the extent Defendant’s conduct does not constitute telemarketing, whether
Defendant obtained prior express oral consent to contact any class members.

46.  Superiority: This case is also appropriate for class certification because

class proceedings are superior to all other available methods for the fair and efficient

adjudication of this controversy. Joinder of all parties is impracticable, and the damages

suffered by the individual members of the Class will likely be relatively small, especially

given the burden and expense of individual prosecution of the complex litigation

necessitated by Defendant’s actions. Thus, it would be virtually impossible for the

individual members of the Class to obtain effective relief from Defendant’s misconduct.

11
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Even if members of the Class could sustain such individual litigation, it would still not be
preferable to a class action. Individual litigation would increase the delay and expense to
all parties due to the complex legal and factual controversies presented in this Complaint.
By contrast, a class action presents far fewer management difficulties and provides the
benefits of single adjudication, economy of scale, and comprehensive supervision by a
single Court. Economies of time, effort and expense will be fostered and uniformity of
decisions ensured.

47.  Adequate notice can be given to the members of the Class directly using

information maintained in Defendant’s records or through notice by publication.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
Telephone Consumer Protection Act
(Violation of 47 U.S.C. § 227)
(On Behalf of Plaintiff and the Robocall No Consent Class)

48.  Plaintiff incorporates by reference the foregoing allegations as if fully set
forth herein.

49. Defendant and/or it’s agent placed unsolicited calls to residential
telephone numbers belonging to Plaintiff and the other members of the Robocall No
Consent Class.

50.  These calls were made without the prior express written consent of the
Plaintiff and the other members of the Robocall No Consent Class to receive such calls.

51.  These calls, including those to Plaintiff, utilized an artificial or
prerecorded voice.

52.  To the extent prior written express consent was required, Defendant failed

to obtain prior written express consent that disclosed to the consumer that agreeing to

12
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receive pre-recorded calls was not a condition of purchase or use of any goods or service.
No oral consent was provided either.

53. To the extent Defendant’s agent placed the calls at issue, Defendant’s agent
acted with actual or apparent authority and/or in accordance with a contract between
Defendant and its agent. Defendant’s agent acted under Defendant’s control and for
Defendant’s benefit and/or with Defendant’s knowledge and approval. Defendant
controlled its agent and knew about, and received the benefits of, the agent’s calling
activities. Defendant ratified the agent’s conduct with respect to the placing of such calls.

54, Defendant has, therefore, violated 47 U.S.C. § 227(b)(1)(B). As a result of
Defendant’s conduct, Plaintiff and the other members of the Robocall No Consent Class
are each entitled to, under 47 U.S.C. § 227(b)(3)(B), a minimum of $500.00 in damages
for each violation of such act.

55. In the event that the Court determines that Defendant’s conduct was
willfull and knowing, it may, under 47 U.S.C. 8 227(b)(3)(C), treble the amount of
statutory damages recoverable by Plaintiff and the other members of the Robocall No
Consent Class.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff Daniel Karon, individually and on behalf of the Class,
prays for the following relief:

1. An order certifying this case as a class action on behalf of the Class as
defined above; appointing Karon as the representative of the Class and appointing his

attorneys as Class Counsel,;

13



Case: 1:18-cv-00999-CAB Doc #: 1 Filed: 05/01/18 14 of 15. PagelD #: 14

2. An award of actual and statutory damages to be paid into a common fund
for the benefit of Plaintiff and the Class;

3. An order declaring that Defendant’s actions, as set out above, violate the
TCPA;

4. An order requiring Defendant to disgorge any ill-gotten funds acquired as
a result of its unlawful telephone calling practices;

5. An order requiring Defendant to identify any third-party involved in the
prerecorded calling as set out above, as well as the terms of any contract or compensation
arrangement it has with such third parties;

6. An injunction requiring Defendant to cease all unsolicited prerecorded
calling activities, and otherwise protecting the interests of the Class;

7. An injunction prohibiting Defendant from contracting with any third-party
for marketing purposes until it establishes and implements policies and procedures for
ensuring the third-party’s compliance with the TCPA;

8. An award of reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs to be paid out of the
common fund prayed for above; and

9. Such further and other relief as the Court deems necessary.

14
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JURY DEMAND

Plaintiff requests a trial by jury of all claims that can be so tried.

Dated: May 1, 2018

DANIEL KARON, individually and on
behalf of a Class of similarly situated
individuals

By: _/s/Adam T. Savett
One of Plaintiff’s Attorneys

Adam T. Savett (VA73387)
adam@savettlaw.com
Savett Law Offices LLC
2764 Carole Lane
Allentown PA 18104
Telephone: (610) 621-4550
Facsimile: (610) 978-2970

Attorneys for Plaintiff and the Putative Class

15
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purpose of determining the proper division, and for statistical reasons, the following information is requested.

ANSWER ONE PARAGRAPH ONLY. ANSWER PARAGRAPHS 1 THRU 3 IN ORDER. UPON FINDING WHICH
PARAGRAPH APPLIES TO YOUR CASE, ANSWER IT AND STOP.

(1) Resident defendant. If the defendant resides in a county within this district, please set forth the name of such
county

COUNTY:

Corporation For the purpose of answering the above, a corporation is deemed to be aresident of that county in which
it has its principal place of business in that district.

(2) Non-Resident defendant. If no defendant is a resident of a county in this district, please set forth the county
wherein the cause of action arose or the event complained of occurred.
COUNTY:
Cuyahoga
(3) Other Cases. If no defendant is a resident of this district, or if the defendant is a corporation not having a principle

place of business within the district, and the cause of action arose or the event complained of occurred outside
this district, please set forth the county of the plaintiff's residence.
COUNTY:

V. The Counties in the Northern District of Ohio are divided into divisions as shown below. After the county is
determined in Section lll, please check the appropriate division.

EASTERN DIVISION
AKRON (Counties: Carroll, Holmes, Portage, Stark, Summit, Tuscarawas and Wayne)
‘/ CLEVELAND (Counties: Ashland, Ashtabula, Crawford, Cuyahoga, Geauga, Lake,
Lorain, Medina and Richland)
YOUNGSTOWN (Counties: Columbiana, Mahoning and Trumbull)
WESTERN DIVISION
[I:I] TOLEDO (Counties: Allen, Auglaize, Defiance, Erie, Fulton, Hancock, Hardin, Henry,

Huron, Lucas, Marion, Mercer, Ottawa, Paulding, Putnam, Sandusky, Seneca
VanWert, Williams, Wood and Wyandot)
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR ATTORNEYS COMPLETING CIVIL COVER SHEET FORM JS 44
Authority For Civil Cover Sheet

The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replaces nor supplements the filings and service of pleading or other papers as
required by law, except as provided by local rules of court. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is
required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet. Consequently, a civil cover sheet is submitted to the Clerk of
Court for each civil complaint filed. The attorney filing a case should complete the form as follows:

L.(a)

(b)

(©)

1I.

III.

Iv.

VI

VIIL.

VIII.

Plaintiffs-Defendants. Enter names (last, first, middle initial) of plaintiff and defendant. If the plaintiff or defendant is a government agency, use
only the full name or standard abbreviations. If the plaintiff or defendant is an official within a government agency, identify first the agency and
then the official, giving both name and title.

County of Residence. For each civil case filed, except U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county where the first listed plaintiff resides at the
time of filing. In U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county in which the first listed defendant resides at the time of filing. (NOTE: In land
condemnation cases, the county of residence of the "defendant" is the location of the tract of land involved.)

Attorneys. Enter the firm name, address, telephone number, and attorney of record. If there are several attorneys, list them on an attachment, noting
in this section "(see attachment)".

Jurisdiction. The basis of jurisdiction is set forth under Rule 8(a), F.R.Cv.P., which requires that jurisdictions be shown in pleadings. Place an "X"
in one of the boxes. If there is more than one basis of jurisdiction, precedence is given in the order shown below.

United States plaintiff. (1) Jurisdiction based on 28 U.S.C. 1345 and 1348. Suits by agencies and officers of the United States are included here.
United States defendant. (2) When the plaintiff is suing the United States, its officers or agencies, place an "X" in this box.

Federal question. (3) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1331, where jurisdiction arises under the Constitution of the United States, an amendment
to the Constitution, an act of Congress or a treaty of the United States. In cases where the U.S. is a party, the U.S. plaintiff or defendant code takes
precedence, and box 1 or 2 should be marked.

Diversity of citizenship. (4) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1332, where parties are citizens of different states. When Box 4 is checked, the
citizenship of the different parties must be checked. (See Section III below; NOTE: federal question actions take precedence over diversity
cases.)

Residence (citizenship) of Principal Parties. This section of the JS 44 is to be completed if diversity of citizenship was indicated above. Mark this
section for each principal party.

Nature of Suit. Place an "X" in the appropriate box. If there are multiple nature of suit codes associated with the case, pick the nature of suit code
that is most applicable. Click here for: Nature of Suit Code Descriptions.

Origin. Place an "X" in one of the seven boxes.

Original Proceedings. (1) Cases which originate in the United States district courts.

Removed from State Court. (2) Proceedings initiated in state courts may be removed to the district courts under Title 28 U.S.C., Section 1441.
When the petition for removal is granted, check this box.

Remanded from Appellate Court. (3) Check this box for cases remanded to the district court for further action. Use the date of remand as the filing
date.

Reinstated or Reopened. (4) Check this box for cases reinstated or reopened in the district court. Use the reopening date as the filing date.
Transferred from Another District. (5) For cases transferred under Title 28 U.S.C. Section 1404(a). Do not use this for within district transfers or
multidistrict litigation transfers.

Multidistrict Litigation — Transfer. (6) Check this box when a multidistrict case is transferred into the district under authority of Title 28 U.S.C.
Section 1407.

Multidistrict Litigation — Direct File. (8) Check this box when a multidistrict case is filed in the same district as the Master MDL docket.
PLEASE NOTE THAT THERE IS NOT AN ORIGIN CODE 7. Origin Code 7 was used for historical records and is no longer relevant due to
changes in statue.

Cause of Action. Report the civil statute directly related to the cause of action and give a brief description of the cause. Do not cite jurisdictional
statutes unless diversity. Example: U.S. Civil Statute: 47 USC 553 Brief Description: Unauthorized reception of cable service

Requested in Complaint. Class Action. Place an "X" in this box if you are filing a class action under Rule 23, F.R.Cv.P.
Demand. In this space enter the actual dollar amount being demanded or indicate other demand, such as a preliminary injunction.
Jury Demand. Check the appropriate box to indicate whether or not a jury is being demanded.

Related Cases. This section of the JS 44 is used to reference related pending cases, if any. If there are related pending cases, insert the docket
numbers and the corresponding judge names for such cases.

Date and Attorney Signature. Date and sign the civil cover sheet.
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AO 440 (Rev. 12/09) Summons in a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the
Northern District of Ohio
DANIEL KARON, individually and on behalf of all
others similarly situated g
Plaintiff )
V. ) Civil Action No. 1:18-cv-00999
)
APEX HEALTHCARE ADVISORS, INC )
)

Defendant

SUMMUONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Defendant’s name and address)
APEX HEALTHCARE ADVISORS, INC
c/o Juan Averoff, Jr
2500 Hollywood Blvd., Suite 314
Hollywood, Florida 33020

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,
whose name and address are:  Adam T. Savett

Savett Law Offices LLC
2764 Carole Lane
Allentown PA 18104
Telephone: (610) 621-4550
Fax: (610) 978-2970

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

SANDY OPACICH, CLERK OF COURT

Date:

Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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Civil Action No. 1:18-cv-00999

PROOF OF SERVICE
(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 (]))

This summons for (name of individual and title, if any)

was received by me on (date)

(O I personally served the summons on the individual at (place)

on (date) ; or

(3 I left the summons at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (name)

, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,

on (date) , and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

O I served the summons on (name of individual) , who is

designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)

on (date) ;or
O I returned the summons unexecuted because ; or
3 Other (specify):
My fees are $ for travel and $ for services, for a total of $ 0.00

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Date:

Server’s signature

Printed name and title

Server’s address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc:
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